
 
 

 

DRAFT 
 

 
 

Commission Meeting Minutes – Meeting Part One 
April 30, 2024 

 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER  

 
Commission Chair Itoco Garcia called the meeting to order at 4:08 p.m.  
 
Commissioners in attendance:  
Kari Beuerman 
Angie Evans 
Itoco Garcia – Chair 
Dr. Jessica Hollman 
Supervisor Eric Lucan 
Lisa Raffel 
Sandra Rosenblum 
 
Commissioners excused: 
Aideen Gaidmore – Vice Chair 
Kelly McKinley 

  
Staff in attendance: 
Maria Niggle – Executive Director 
Michelle Fadelli - Manager of Public Policy and Communications 
 
Guests in attendance: 
Crystal Duran – Tiburon Library & First 5 Marin’s RFP Review Committee 
Megan Joseph – Impact Launch (RFP consultant) – joined online 

 
 

II. PRESENTATION:  Summary of RFP Process 
 
First 5 Marin’s RFP consultant, Megan Jospeh, presented a summary of the RFP 
process that was just completed—(a slide deck is available).  Megan reviewed: 

      * priorities in First 5 Marin’s Strategic Plan 
* the opportunity before us:  with declining revenues, the opportunity to make an 
impact with a focus on equity 
* the criteria for applicants 
* the Proposal Review Committee (two commissioners, two representatives from 
philanthropy, two community representatives, and First 5 Marin’s Executive Director 
* the scoring rubric 
* the proposal review process 
 



In all, 44 proposals were received with total requests of nearly $8 million.  Each 
member of the Proposal Review Committee reviewed all 44 proposals and scored 
them.  The Committee then met for a three-hour session to report and compare 
scores, discuss the and rank the proposals, and decide on the final (ten) proposals 
that would be recommended for funding. 
 

• Commissioner Lisa Raffel said the diversity of the review panel was valuable.  
“Together, we were wiser.”  The initial review was solo; there was good 
alignment when we came together.  The “middle zone” was real work. 

• Crystal Duran agreed that the different backgrounds, perspectives and expertise 
was good. 

• Commission Chair Itoco Garcia if the “Key Considerations” were ranked.  
Megan said no, it was an open conversation.  Executive Director Maria Niggle 
added that “equity,” “collaboration” and “gaps in service” all scored one point 
higher. 

• Itoco asked if there was anything else.  Michelle Fadelli added that “impact” 
was a consideration:  would the proposed project or program make a difference?  
Maria added that these were hard decisions.  Crystal added that there was also 
consideration of whether the applicant had other outside funding opportunities.  
Lisa added that everything was in context:  What’s happening in healthcare?  
What funding is available?  Maria added that proposals were unsustainable, and 
there were some supplantation issues. 

• Commissioner Kari Beuerman asked about bias.  Two commissioners’ 
agencies were involved.  Maria answered that those commissioners are recused 
from the review process and voting on the recommended proposals.  (Note: 
those two commissioners, Aideen Gaidmore and Kelly McKinley, were also not 
present in the room for this presentation and vote.)  Lisa added that lots of us 
(commissioners) have lots of community connections. 

• Commissioner Sandra Rosenblum mentioned “billable medical services” and 
options for leveraging funding for more impact.   

• Maria added that some applicants have bond or tax funding or federal funding.  
Also, the top five scoring proposals totaled $700,000, so there was only 
$300,000 left for any additional proposals.  Also, some proposals had very high 
price tags; one proposal alone requested $800,000— with only $1 million 
available.  Another issue was whether the funding request seemed to be for 
current work or whether it was for new or expanded efforts. 

• Commissioner Eric Lucan offered his thanks to the reviewers for all their 
efforts. 

• Commissioner Emeritus Dave Bonfilio noted that some proposals were 
submitted by a lead agency with one or more “partner agencies” that would be 
involved in the work. 

• Kari added that “countywide efforts” often don’t include West Marin, so 
partnerships are good.  Commissioner Angie Evans added that Southern Marin 
is also often missed. 

• Sandra added that we talked about who can do this work most effectively. 

• Maria added that we are going to convene a “funders group” to seek additional 
funding for some of projects; she noted that two proposals were strong and 
deserve other funding. 

• Maria also mentioned the upcoming “Strategic Children’s Funding 
Coordinator” position who will be looking at gaps in funding— like early 



childhood behavioral health.  Can we help others pull down funding?  (She added 
that First 5 Marin is working on a pilot project with Marin Health and Human 
Services related to CalAIM billing.) 

 
NEXT STEPS: 
- Meeting with the Marin Community Foundation (about submitting proposals for 
possible Donor Advised Funding. 
- Convene “Marin Funders” group 
- Establish the Strategic Children’s Funding Coordinator position 
- Look for new funding streams 

 

• Itoco asked, What if grantees don’t meet their metrics?  Maria said that 
established indicators will help grantees tell their stories.  Megan added that we 
will be convening quarterly meetings with grantees.  Maria added that we are 
less concerned about narrative reports, and more about learning. If they can’t 
meet their indicators, we might reduce their award. 

• Dave asked if the organizations know.  And does the money carry over to the 
next fiscal year? 

• Itoco said this is a great foundation for a new way of funding—great process!  
(Agendize for FY 25-26.)  Maria responded that this RFP process was envisioned 
as a three-year process; we will present progress reports. 

• Lisa asked if we will approve this funding annually; Itoco said, Yes we should, 
based on our revenues and consideration of whether grantees meet their metrics 
etc.  (All agreed.)  Maria noted that this is part of the “RFP Guidelines.” 

• Michelle asked, How and when will money be distributed?  Maria said that one-
fourth will be transferred on July 1st, 2024—then quarterly.  Eric added that the 
extended distribution is good for our finances two. 

• Commissioner Hollman said the RFP process is very cool and the projects look 
great! 

• Eric added that we should have presentations from the funded partners at 
upcoming commission meetings.  (All agreed.) 
 
Commissioner Garcia called for a motion. 
 
Jessica Hollman made a motion to accept and approve the funding 
recommendations from the Review Committee. 

        Motion/Second:  Hollman/Beuerman 
 The motion to approve was unanimous. 
 
 Commissioner Beuerman said thanks again to the Review Committee. 
 

Michelle asked about announcements and said we can send letters to the 
applicants, and then send an email blast and post on our website and on social 
media.  Itoco said we should send an email message ASAP, stating that an 
official letter is coming. 

 
 
 
 
 



III. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 
 
Commissioner Garcia made a plug for the Marin Communications Forum on 
Thursday (May 2nd) for Maternal Mental Health.  He also noticed the importance of 
our grant funding for the Postpartum Support Center. 
 
Commissioner Hollman added that the Postpartum Support Center is having a 
fundraising walk on May 19th at 5 pm, meeting at the Civic Center lagoon. 
 

IV. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Commissioner Garcia called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
 

Lisa Raffel made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
        Motion/Second:  Raffel/Evans 

 The motion to approve was unanimous. 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 5:00 p.m. 
 

 



 
 

 

DRAFT 
 

 
 

Commission Meeting Minutes – Meeting Part Two 
April 30, 2024 

 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER  

 
Commission Chair Itoco Garcia called the meeting to order at 5:16 p.m.  
 
Commissioners in attendance:  
Kari Beuerman 
Angie Evans 
Aideen Gaidmore – Vice Chair 
Itoco Garcia – Chair 
Dr. Jessica Hollman 
Supervisor Eric Lucan 
Kelly McKinley 
Lisa Raffel 
Sandra Rosenblum 

  
Staff in attendance: 
Maria Niggle – Executive Director 
Michelle Fadelli - Manager of Public Policy and Communications 

 
 

II. MEETING MINUTES 
 
Commissioner Garcia asked if there were changes, additions or corrections to the 
commission minutes for the last meeting on March 13, 2024. 

      Motion/Second:  Lucan/Hollman 
The minutes of March 13, 2024, were approved by all present, with 
Commissioner Lisa Raffel abstaining (due to her absence on that date). 
 

III. EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR’S REPORT 
 
Executive Director Maria Niggle offered her thanks to Michelle Fadelli, Manager of 
Public Policy and Communications and producer of the Marin Communications 
Forum, for the April forum on Racial Equity with 375 people in attendance.   
 
She said she will be distributing information about the Children’s Funding 
Coordinator.  A job description will be released in July; and the position will be 
housed at First 5 Marin.  We have $63,000 but still need to raise $140,000 (to cover 
salary and training).  Commissioner Eric Lucan said he anticipates co-funding by 
the County of Marin, the Marin County Office of Education and the Marin Community 



Foundation.  Commissioner Aideen Gaidmore said it’s important that the position 
is housed at First 5 Marin.  Commissioner Jessica Hollman asked, What work will 
be done?  Maria said the position will look at funding options and opportunities for 
co-funding.  They will be trained, and the person will be part of a national cohort.  
Eric referenced the “Early Learning Roadmap” and said, Let’s do fiscal mapping.  
Commissioner Kari Beuerman said the exact conversation is happening around 
older adults; could it be the same position?  Aideen said, If this is successful, we can 
share with the County.  Maria said, You also have The Children’s Funding Project. 
 
Maria also raised the issue of Help Me Grow Marin.  She reminded the 
commissioners that First 5 Marin has made a commitment through 2025; we will 
need to address this next fiscal year. 

 
 

IV. COMMISSION ITEMS 
 
A. Marin Child Care Council’s Provider Dinner – the May 11 dinner has 250 

registrants for this special event at the Embassy Suites Hotel.   
 
Commissioner McKinley asked about the process of applying for 
sponsorships—how do organizations know about this?  Aideen said that the 
Marin Child Care Commission just asked.  Commissioner Lucan said we should 
bring the process to the commission for review; the executive director should 
have the authority for a certain dollar amount.  (Commissioner Emeritus Dave 
Bonfilio said the authority is for $25,000; Maria said she thought it was $10,000.  
We need to check the By-Laws.)  Maria added that requests for “Discretionary 
Funds” go to the commission.  Commissioner Garcia said we can use the 
Consent Agenda for notice of funds approved by the executive director, and then 
post notice on the website.  Dave added that some needs are immediate; we 
need authority for executive director approval. 
 
Commissioner Garcia called for a motion. 
 

  Motion/Second:  Hollman Beuerman 
The motion to approve $5,000 in funding for the Marin Child Care Council’s 
Provider Dinner was unanimously approved. 
 

B. Commission Seats Expiring – Maria reminded commissioners that two seats 
on the commission are expiring:  Commissioner Garcia’s “at-large seat” and 
Commissioner Beuerman’s seat representing Marin County Health and Human 
Services.  Itoco and Kari will need to re-apply for the seat if they want to continue 
to serve.  (Maria will send the application link to the commissioners.) 

 
V. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS 

 
Commissioner Lucan reported on the second annual “Primavera” event in Novato, 
serving the Latino/Spanish-language community, where he distributed First 5’s “Kit 
for New Parents.  Maritza Barahona from Help Me Grow Marin joined him, and 
shared information about Help Me Grow as well.  (Michelle added that the Kit for 
New Parents is available in six languages; contact her to order single kits or boxes 
of five.) 



Commissioner Kelly McKinley announced that the Bay Area Discovery Museum is 

a finalist for the “2024 National Medal for Museum and Library Services.”  (Congrats 

to BADM!)  She added that San Rafael City Schools is participating in transitional 
kindergarten teacher and family workshops. 
 

VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 

Commissioner Garcia called for a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
 

Commissioner Lucan made a motion to adjourn the meeting. 
        Motion/Second:  Lucan/McKinley 

 The motion to approve was unanimous. 
 

The meeting was adjourned at 5:57 p.m. 
 

 


	Minutes for 4-30-24 Pt 1 (1)
	Minutes for 4-30-24 - Part Two (1)

